
MINUTES 
REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MAY 24, 2016 
CORTE MADERA TOWN HALL 

CORTE MADERA 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Chair Peter Chase 
      Vice-Chair Phyllis Metcalfe   
      Commissioner Dan McCadden 
      Commissioner Robert Bundy 
      Commissioner Nicolo Caldera 
    
STAFF PRESENT:     Adam Wolff, Planning Director 
      Phil Boyle, Senior Planner 
      Assistant Planner Doug Bush 
      Judith Propp, Town Attorney 
      Joanne O’Hehir, Minutes Recorder 
 
1.  OPENING: 
 

A.  Call to Order – The meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Chase led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
C.  Roll Call – All the commissioners were present.  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT – NONE  
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR – NONE 
 
4. CONTINUED HEARING 

A. 516 CHAPMAN DRIVE – DESIGN REVIEW AND VARIANCE APPLICATION 
NO. 15-032 FOR A NEW 4,001 SQUARE FOOT, THREE-STORY 
RESIDENCE.  THIS ITEM IS CONTINUED FROM THE APRIL 24, 2016 
PUBLIC HEARING WHERE THE COMMISSION REQUESTED THE 
APPLICANT PROVIDE A REVISED LANDSCAPE PLAN (Senior Planner Phil 
Boyle). 

 
Senior Planner Boyle presented the staff report. Mr. Boyle explained that the public 
hearing was continued for the applicant to revise the landscape plan, and he noted that 
the commissioners can still review the plans for the residence. Mr. Boyle discussed the 
project and he noted that, with the exception of the front setback for the raised driveway 
and walkway, the proposed project meets the Town’s planning requirements.  
 
Mr. Boyle provided slide comparisons of the previous two landscape plans with the final 
proposed plan, highlighting the areas that are of most concern to the neighbors. He 
identified sections at varying stages of growth, which the commissioners had requested. 
Mr. Boyle discussed the raised planters to add height to the trees and the photographic 
growth projections of new landscaping along Chapman Drive.  



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

2 

 
Mr. Boyle discussed meetings between the applicant’s team, neighbors and the Fire 
Department, noting that the applicant has met the requirements of the latter. He noted 
the added condition requested by Public Works that, if the plantings between Chapman 
Drive and the property are approved, a maintenance agreement should be drafted 
between the applicant and the Town.  
 
Mr. Boyle discussed e-mail correspondence that has been received since the packets 
were delivered last Friday. He also noted that the resolution has been revised for 
reasons he discussed.  
 
Overall, Mr. Boyle confirmed that staff feels the applicants have done an adequate job in 
responding to the commissioners’ and neighbors’ concerns. He noted that not all of the 
neighbors’ requests have been met, but that staff believes a compromise has been 
reached and is recommending approval of the application  
 
In response to Chair Chase, Mr. Boyle confirmed that the landscape plan meets the Fire 
Department’s requirements. Mr. Boyle said that staff is not aware of there being utilities 
where plantings are proposed.  
 
Joe Farrell, Project Architect, explained that they have done their best to mitigate the 
concerns of their neighbors, noting that they have met and reviewed the project with 
them and discussed tree removal. Mr. Farrell discussed landscaping the perimeter of the 
property, which they believe is the best mitigation measure to hide the dwelling.   
 
Mr. Farrell responded to an e-mail concerning objection to the exterior pale color, noting 
that there is another home in the area with similar coloring.  
 
Brad Eigsti, Landscape Architect, discussed the new landscape plan, which includes a 
Myrica hedge and Arbutus trees to provide screening from Chapman Drive. He 
discussed the addition of rock planters to increase the height of some of the plantings 
and to provide good soil and drainage. Mr. Eigsti said they have also added coast live 
oaks and a magnolia, and that the total number of additional trees proposed is 39.  
 
In response to Commissioner Caldera, Mr. Farrell clarified the proposed off-white 
exterior color.  
 
Mr. Eigsti discussed with Commissioner McCadden the reasons he believes the addition 
of 39 trees is the correct number of tree replacements. He said that careful pruning is 
necessary so that the greenery does not become overgrown, but that the landscape plan 
should address the privacy issues in the long term. Mr. Eigsti said the plants are not 
pyrophoric and are deer-proof and drought-tolerant, and that he does not believe the 
property will be too densely covered. He discussed the variety of plants in relation to a 
defensible circle.  
 
Commissioner Bundy and Mr. Eigsti discussed the size of plantings on the northern 
edge of the property and the rock planters.  Commissioner Bundy commented on the 
eucalyptus trees being a unique aspect of Chapman Park and his concerns that the 
changes will be dramatic and will leave the new dwelling exposed for a period of time. 
Commissioner Bundy expressed a desire to keep the healthy eucalyptus trees initially 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

3 

and Mr. Eigsti noted that some of the eucalyptus trees on Chapman Drive will not be 
removed.  
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said she would leave the decision concerning whether or not to 
remove the eucalyptus trees immediately with the client. She said the landscape plan 
has progressed tremendously and will offer privacy to the neighborhood and the home 
dwellers.  Vice-Chair Metcalfe asked Mr. Farrell to clarify the colors.  
 
In response to Chair Chase, Mr. Farrell clarified which trees are slated for removal and 
those that they are proposing to leave in place.  
 
Mr. Eigsti and Commissioner Chase discussed the neighborhood meeting. Mr. Eigsti 
confirmed that he, Mr. Farrell and Deputy Fire Chief Peter Davis met with approximately 
15 neighbors.  
 
DFC Davis provided materials relating to eucalyptus trees being a fire hazard. He 
confirmed that the Department enforces defensible space, and that the proposed 
improvements would benefit everyone.  
 
In response to Chair Chase, DFC Davis said the species of plantings chosen for 
defensible space is based on how they grow and that the priority is to protect the 
residence.  
 
In response to Commissioner Bundy, DFC Davis said they do not encourage residents 
to provide a sprinkler system for landscaping because it could affect the Department’s 
ability to use water. They suggest homeowners cut weeds and trim trees to make a 
home safe.  
 
Chair Chase opened the comment period.  
 
Dan Phipps, 495 Chapman Drive, discussed his concern that there will be insufficient 
screening on the west side and asked if the trees could be moved further up the hill. Mr. 
Phipps said the colors should be more muted and he said the plans are not sufficiently 
clear to determine that their views will not be affected.  
 
Elliel Redstone, 200 Stetson, discussed his concern that the applicants did not consult 
the neighbors after the neighborhood meeting and before they resubmitted the revised 
plans. Mr. Redstone suggested a retaining wall on the north edge of Chapman Drive to 
provide the level of privacy he does not believe the landscape plan will provide.  
 
Elein Phipps, 495 Chapman Drive, discussed the reasons she believes the process has 
not been smooth and she discussed her concern that the landscape plan will not make 
much difference to screening. Ms. Phipps said there is insufficient information for a 
decision to be made.  
 
Tim Porter, 544 Chapman, noted that the landscape plan has progressed, but he 
expressed concern that the proposal includes the removal of trees at the bottom of the 
property that do not constitute a danger and could perhaps be pruned. Mr. Porter said 
that the applicants should be able to construct a home amongst an abundance of trees 
or choose a lot in a different town where there are none.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

4 

Linda Haley, 200 Stetson, said that other dwellings in the area are of subtle earth tones, 
and that the proposed lighter shade will contrast too strongly with the darker colors. Ms. 
Haley commented on the tree removal process and said that a construction plan should 
be drafted before construction begins.  
 
Susan Becker, 461 Chapman, said that she agrees with the comments of the previous 
speakers and that she, too, believes the proposed colors should blend more into the 
landscape like other homes in the area. Ms. Becker also agrees that trees should be 
planted higher on the property to provide more screening and she suggested fewer trees 
could be removed. She also expressed concern that the neighbors have not been 
informed of the proposed changes.  
 
In response to Vice-Chair Metcalfe, Mr. Boyle clarified the right-of-way area on 
Chapman Drive, which he noted is owned by the Town of Corte Madera, but he said that 
the area between the edge of the pavement to the property line is the responsibility of 
the homeowner. Mr. Boyle said that the Public Works Department has an interest in 
what is planted on the edge of the property line to ensure the street is not damaged.  
 
Mr. Eigsti discussed the suitability of planting Myrica in the area closest to Chapman 
Drive in response to Vice-Chair Metcalfe. He said that the intention is to have devised a 
landscape plan that will result in a natural and native setting to fit the character of 
Chapman Drive. Mr. Eigsti explained that they are proposing to remove trees at the 
bottom of the lot for safety reasons.  
 
Chair Chase noted that a construction management plan will need to be submitted to the 
Town for approval prior to construction.  
 
Commissioner Bundy and Mr. Eigsti discussed the preference for Arbutus. 
Commissioner Bundy commented on the style of the dwelling and said he would 
recommend an earth tone in place of the light exterior color, which he discussed with Mr. 
Farrell. 
 
In response to Commissioner Caldera, Mr. Eigsti discussed the reasons he believes the 
height of the screening is suitable, noting that a crane will probably be needed to install 
the trees and that rock planters are proposed to add height and for drainage and soil 
purposes. Mr. Eigsti noted the need to maintain some distance from the road.  
 
In further response to commissioner Caldera, Mr. Farrell suggested a condition that staff 
could work with the applicant to amend the proposed pale exterior color since he is not 
able to propose a different color at this stage.  
 
Chair Chase and Mr. Farrell discussed the addition of planter walls, which Mr. Farrell 
said would be linear, and therefore less natural, and would be expensive. He 
acknowledged that a void will be created with the removal of trees but that, until the 
landscape provides sufficient screening, the residence below Chapman will only appear 
to be a two-story home.  
 
Chair Chase closed the public comment period.  
 
Commissioner Caldera said the project fits the scale and character of the neighborhood; 
that and the design diminishes the massing and the applicants have met the legal 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

5 

entitlements. However, Commissioner Caldera said he would like an effort to be made to 
choose an alternative exterior color; that there appears to be nothing more to add to the 
landscaping, but that he would suggest additional drawings showing the location of the 
dwelling in relation to the new trees and plantings.    
 
Commissioner McCadden said he generally agrees with staff’s recommendations and 
that he can make the findings to support the project. He said the landscape plan has 
been satisfactorily revised, requiring more expense and plantings than would usually be 
expected. Commissioner McCadden said that the color is subjective and he would not 
recommend a change unless it is felt to be completely offensive.  
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said she concurs with the recommendations in the staff report and 
that she can make the findings to support the project. She said she would feel 
comfortable with staff making a decision on the exterior color in consultation with the 
applicant. Vice-Chair Metcalfe said the landscape plan is a considerable improvement 
and that an effort has been made to appease the neighbors’ concerns.  
 
Commissioner Bundy agrees that the landscape plan has addressed the neighbors’ and 
commissioners’ concerns and expressed a hope that adequate screening will be 
provided in a shorter period of time than anticipated. He said he agrees with the 
suggestion that the applicant works with staff to choose an appropriate exterior color.  
 
Chair Chase said the bottom of the property will be planted with oaks and other species, 
which will become forested over time. He referred to previous discussions relating to the 
impact of eucalyptus on the watershed, and said that he supports the removal of these 
trees. Chair Chase noted that the applicants are proposing to plant intensively and that 
he believes the screening will be significant in 5 – 10 years time, which addresses the 
neighbors’ concerns. Chair Chase said the commissioners review more intrusive 
projects and that the design is aesthetically pleasing and will add value to the 
neighborhood.  
 
Chair Chase commented on the process, noting that the applicant has reached out to 
the neighbors; that their input has been provided and a legal notice was mailed. He 
noted that reaching out does not necessitate consensus, and said the applicants have 
responded to a number of issues. Chair Chase suggested that staff is directed to review 
the exterior color with the applicant and choose a suitable darker color, or earth tone, 
which prompted discussion amongst the commissioners.  

 
MOTION: Motioned by Commissioner Bundy, seconded by Commissioner 
Caldera, to approve Design Review and Variance Application No. 15-032 for a 
new 4,001 square foot, three-story residence at 516 Chapman Drive with the 
additional condition that the applicant will work with staff to choose a suitable 
alternative darker/earth tone exterior color with staff’s approval and the removal 
of condition No. 10 

 
  AYES:  Metcalfe, Bundy, Chase, McCadden, Caldera 
  NOES: None 
 
 
5. NEW HEARINGS 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

6 

 
A. 5627 PARADISE DRIVE (NUGGET MARKET) – DESIGN REVIEW 

APPLICATION FOR EXTERIOR FAÇADE IMPROVEMENTS. (Assistant Planner 
Doug Bush) 
 

Assistant Planner Bush presented the staff report.  Mr. Bush discussed the three parcels 
that comprise Nugget Market and provided background information on the property, 
including a refurbishment project in 2000 – 2001. Mr. Bush discussed the present 
elevations of the store, the position of a Wells Fargo ATM machine and the two 
entrances, with tables and chairs outside the second entrance. He confirmed this was 
part of the approval in 2000 – 2001 and that the intent at the time was to create an area 
which could serve as a community gathering space. Mr. Bush also discussed a storage 
and loading area.  
 
Mr. Bush discussed the proposed modifications to the building, which he said include a 
proposal to add two doors and a roofline extension on the east side, and the installation 
of barn doors on the front elevation. Additional planting is proposed, which he discussed, 
in addition to an additional seating area on the east side. Mr. Bush noted that the 
entrance and carts will be relocated, as well as the ATM machine.  
 
Mr. Bush discussed the elevations beginning with the storage area on the east side that 
will have doors and a roof, which will result in an additional 850 sq. ft. of floor area. He 
also discussed a landscaping feature at the front, a new cart storage area, trellis, and a 
glass overhang. Mr. Bush noted the current and proposed new entrance in relation to the 
new barn doors, which he said will be opened and closed by staff and adjusted for 
inclement weather.  
 
Mr. Bush discussed a plantation window element near the front entrance and the 
proposed colors (noting that a color board has been provided), which he said will match 
the existing colors. He said the Building Department expressed concern about the barn 
doors being ADA compliant.  
 
Mr. Bush confirmed the project meets all standards in the C-1 Shopping District, noting 
that it is a continued use with an additional seating area, which will serve the grocery 
store and the center.    
 
Mr. Bush discussed the shopping center being part of the Paradise San Clemente 
Specific Plan Area, which was adopted in 1979 with the intention of creating a cohesive 
corridor in terms of color, sign and landscaping requirements. Mr. Bush said that staff 
believes the proposal generally continues the theme of those requirements.  
 
In response to Vice-Chair Metcalfe, Mr. Bush clarified the proposed design for the roof 
above the loading area.  
 
Jim Perkins, Project Architect, discussed the barn doors, which he said could be closed 
to provide screening during inclement weather for people using the exterior seating area. 
Mr. Perkins also discussed the addition of new doors to provide two indoor meeting 
rooms. 
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

7 

Jeff Albright, Nugget Market, discussed the multi-use purpose of the two meeting rooms. 
He said that members of the community might use the function rooms for various 
purposes and he noted that the loading dock roof will offer protection from the weather.  
 
Commissioner McCadden and Mr. Perkins discussed parking and whether an easement 
existed regarding shared parking. Mr. Bush noted that, at the time of construction, a 
shared parking agreement existed between the Market and Aegis. Commissioner 
McCadden explained why he believes it is important to know the terms of the original 
agreement, which relates to parking ratios.  He commented on the proposal, noting that 
he favors the seating areas for members of the community, which will offer protection 
from the weather.  
 
Commissioner Bundy commented on the entrance design, which he said makes a lot of 
sense, as does the proposed roof for the loading bay. However, he expressed concern 
that the style of the barn doors is not in keeping with the market and he asked whether 
there is a need for community areas.  In response, Mr. Albright said that stores are 
adopting a policy of providing rooms for community activities for reasons he discussed. 
He said the barn doors provide a light and airy design and will afford some protection 
from the wind and rain. He discussed the outdoor seating design with Commissioner 
Bundy and noted that there is insufficient space inside the store to provide an ATM. 
  
Vice-Chair Metcalfe discussed parking, noting that some of the spaces are designated, 
and she expressed a preference for the present style of the market. She said the design 
is too crowded; that the proposed changes will not complement the style of the Aegis 
building and that the colors and window trim should be similar.  
 
In response to Chair Chase, Mr. Albright noted that they have overlooked the provision 
of bicycle racks in the plans and he suggested a suitable area to accommodate racks. 
Mr. Albright said they are considering a portable outdoor barbecue and he and Chair 
Chase discussed the movement of produce carts through the sliding doors.  
 
Chair Chase opened and then closed the public comment period when no one came 
forward to speak.  
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said she does not care for the design, which she believes is 
overcrowded with too many different styles. She said it does not match the design of the 
Aegis building, which she said is a good design, and that the proposal is not in keeping 
with the intended design of the market and retirement home.  
 
Commissioner Bundy said he does not favor the sliding barn doors, which he believes 
detract from the style of the Market and Aegis buildings. He suggested a different style 
of enclosure, such as a planter wall or a design incorporating plastic tarp, which he 
believes would be more in keeping with the style of the building but achieve the same 
goal. Commissioner Bundy said he supports the relocation of the entrance and is very 
much in favor of the community rooms.  
 
Commissioner Caldera said the project is simple and smart and that he is in favor of the 
changes. He said he would like to see more details of the sliding door panels, which will 
add flexibility and which he believes is a good solution to improve the area.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

8 

Commissioner McCadden said the proposed look is aesthetically neutral and that, while 
some people will like it, others will not find it to their taste. He said he supports the 
project because changes will be made if the community is not in favor of the new 
renovations.  
 
Commissioner McCadden discussed the parking count, and questioned whether there 
are sufficient spaces allocated to the store for parking to be in conformance. He believes 
a parking issue would arise should the fitness business change to a more intense use. 
Commissioner McCadden discussed the importance of understanding the language in 
the easement document relating to shared parking. Otherwise, he said that he favors the 
changes, albeit they are not to his personal taste.  
 
Commissioner Bundy referred to parking issues relating to the fitness center. Planning 
Director Wolff explained that the original parking agreement was complex but that 
parking was considered adequate and that staff did not see an easement document in 
the files confirming if the arrangement between the parties was legally binding. Mr. Bush 
noted that parking requirements are 1 space per 250 sq. ft. of commercial building 
space.  
 
Commissioner McCadden commented on it being highly unusual for a formal document 
not to exist and he expressed his concern that the project might violate an existing 
agreement.  Mr. Wolff suggested the commissioners could direct the applicant to provide 
proof of shared parking should they so desire.  
 
Chair Chase said he is in agreement with Commissioner McCadden with regard to 
shared parking. He commented on making rooms available to the public, noting that the 
changes might enhance the way people congregate and that the applicant is making an 
effort to become more modernized. Chair Chase said he could make the findings to 
support the project.  
 
Mr. Bush noted that, since over 2,000 sq. ft. of space is not being added, the code does 
not require a specific amount of bike parking but that it is within the commissioners’ 
purview to require additional spaces.  He noted that bicycle racks are shown in the 
photos, if not on the drawings. 
 

MOTION: Motioned by Commissioner Caldera, seconded by Commissioner 
McCadden, to adopt Resolution No. 16-016, approving Design Review 
Application No. 16-002, to allow exterior modifications and an 850 sq. ft. addition 
at 5627 Paradise Drive, with the additional conditions that there is confirmation 
the required number of parking spaces have been met; that evidence of a 
parking agreement between the tenants of the shopping center is provided to the 
Planning Department, and that the minimum number of bicycle parking spaces 
determined necessary by the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee are added.  

 
 AYES:  Chase, McCadden, Caldera 
 NOES:  Metcalfe, Bundy 
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said that she could not make finding No. 4 and Mr. Bush read the 
appeal rights.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

9 

B. 1618 REDWOOD HIGHWAY (THE VILLAGE) – PRELIMINARY PLAN AND 
PRECISE PLAN AMENDMENT, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND DESIGN 
REVIEW FOR MODIFICATIONS TO THE CENTER COURT AREA OF THE 
VILLAGE AT CORTE MADERA INCLUDING THE REMOVAL OF THE TOWER, 
THE INSTALLATION OF THREE INDEPENDENT RETAIL KIOSKS, NEW 
PLANTER AREAS, SEAT WALLS AND RAMPS. (Senior Planner Phil Boyle) 

 
Senior Planner Boyle presented the staff report. He explained that the modifications are 
intended to revitalize the center area of the mall and that they include the removal of the 
tower, which is no longer structurally sound and inhibits the views from areas outside the 
mall and the visibility of some of the store fronts. Mr. Boyle discussed other elements 
that are proposed to be removed, including two trellises, and he discussed the addition 
of three 300 sq. ft. kiosks, a seating wall round the existing fountain, and new 
landscaping.  
 
Mr. Boyle discussed the kiosks, which could be used for food preparation, and thus a 
Conditional Use Permit is necessary.  He noted that patrons would not go inside a food 
kiosk, but that they might go inside a kiosk that sells products. He said that landscaping 
will be added alongside the kiosks.  
 
Mr. Boyle discussed lighting, which will be night sky compliant, and he said that lighting 
will be added beneath a new railing and the seat wall. He noted that accessibility will be 
greatly increased and ADA compliant. Mr. Boyle explained that the light posts will remain 
with new heads that will be fitted with down lighting, as will the lighting beneath each 
kiosk.  
 
Mr. Boyle discussed the proposed layout of tables, chairs and umbrellas, noting that the 
paths of travel will need to remain open. He discussed the color board.  
  
Mr. Boyle concluded his presentation with staff’s recommendation that the Preliminary 
and Precise Plans are approved, in addition to the Conditional Use Permit and Design 
Review application. He discussed parking and noted that staff is confident that there are 
sufficient spaces since the kiosks require just four spaces.  
 
Garrett Newland, Vice-President of Macerich, introduced his team.  Mr. Newland 
discussed the renovations and said the tower is unused, is not ADA-compliant and that it 
blocks storefronts. Mr. Newland said the improvements would raise the center out of the 
flood plain and that they would be creating better ADA accessibility and landscaping with 
drought tolerant plants. Mr. Newland discussed the new kiosks, which he said should 
provide more food opportunities,  
 
Mr. Newland expressed their intention to complete the work before the holiday season 
and he summarized the project’s advantages.  
 
In response to Vice-Chair Metcalfe, Mr. Newland said that the façade for the Banana 
Republic is not proposed to change with this application  
 
In response to Commissioner Bundy’s inquiry about the necessity for the kiosks to 
provide hand-washing facilities, David Piper, Project Architect, said the tenants would 
need to comply with the health code.  
 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

10 

In response to Commissioner McCadden, Mr. Wolff said the tower was part of the 
original plans that were approved in 1984. He noted that exterior renovations were made 
to the tower in 2005.  
 
Mr. Boyle confirmed that staff has not received any public comments since the story 
poles were erected.  Mr. Wolff said that information on the project was provided at the 
site and that there was a notice and press release.  
 
Chair Chase and Mr. Newland discussed the tower. Mr. Newland said they see the tower 
as an eyesore rather than an architectural feature, and that they believe the proposed 
design is a suitable update.  He confirmed they would reduce the kelvins to 3,500 from 
5000 at Chair Chase’s request.  
 
Chair Chase and Mr. Piper discussed lighting for the kiosk signs. Mr. Boyle noted that 
the applicant has been provided information on tenant design guidelines, and that the 
signs must conform to other signs in the center.  
 
Chair Chase opened and then closed the public comment period when no one came 
forward to speak.  
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said it is a good project; that no-one will miss the tower, which 
serves no purpose. She said the seating and kiosks are positive additions to the 
shopping center and that she can approve the project.  
 
Commissioner Bundy said that the proposal is a good project and that he never saw 
anyone in the tower when it was open to the public.  
 
Commissioner Caldera concurred with the other commissioners. He said the proposal 
will be an improvement to the center. 
 
Commissioner McCadden and Mr. Piper discussed the pre-fab design of the kiosks and 
the lighting design. Mr. Piper explained that they would be relocating poles and changing 
the heads and Commissioner McCadden said the lights were plain with no artistic 
integrity. 
 
Commissioner McCadden and Mr. Newland discussed the furniture plan, which Mr. 
Newland said would be flexible to allow them to relocate furniture as needed. Mr. Wolff 
noted there was also fixed seating.  
 

MOTION: Motioned by Vice-Chair Metcalfe, seconded by Commissioner 
Caldera, to allow Preliminary and Precise Plan Amendment No. PL-2016-0050-
PDP, Conditional Use Permit No. PL-2016-0056-UP, and Design Review No.  
PL-2016-0038-DR for modifications to the center court area of The Village at 
Corte Madera including the removal of the tower, the installation of three 
independent retail kiosks, new planter areas, seat walls and ramps, with the 
added condition that the kelvins will be reduced from 5,000 to 3,500: 

 
  AYES: Metcalfe, Bundy, Chase, McCadden, Caldera 
  NOES: None 
 
Senior Planner Boyle read the appeal rights.  



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

11 

 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 

A. 136 SUMMIT DRIVE – LANDSCAPE PLAN AS REQUESTED BY THE COMMISSION 
(Senior Planner Phil Boyle) 

 
Senior Planner Boyle presented the staff report, noting a minor correction relating to tree 
height. He explained the commissioners’ intentions are to ensure sufficient screening is 
provided for the new dwelling. Mr. Boyle compared the previous landscape plans with 
the new proposed plan and drew the commissioners’ attention to simulations of mature 
growth.  Mr. Boyle said that staff believes the revised landscape plan meets the intention 
of the Planning Commission and, therefore, recommends approval.  
 
Chris Dorman, Project Architect, discussed the landscape plan, which he said should 
address the privacy issues that were raised at the last meeting by planting trees along 
the street side of the property. He discussed the species recommended, noting that they 
are relatively quick-growing. 
 
In response to Commissioner Caldera, Mr. Dorman said the simulations are showing 
tree growth at five years.  
 
Vice-Chair Metcalfe said the plan looks good and that she likes the tree fern, with which 
Commissioner Bundy is in agreement.  
 
Commissioner McCadden said he favors the plan, noting the difficult screening 
conditions coming up the hill.  
 
Chair Chase said the applicants have made a good effort to provide screening and that it 
is incumbent on the Town to ensure the screening is in place at the end of the project.  
 

MOTION: Motioned by Commissioner Caldera, seconded by Vice-Chair 
Metcalfe, to approve the landscape plan for the project at 136 Summit, which 
satisfies the approval requirements for the construction project: 

 
  AYES: Metcalfe, Bundy, Chase, McCadden, Caldera 
  NOES: None 
 
Senior Planner Boyle read the appeal rights.  

 
7. ROUTINE AND OTHER MATTERS 

A. REPORTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

i. Commissioners 
 
Commissioner Caldera reported on his attendance of the May 17th Town Council 
meeting, where he said there had been discussions on refinancing the Park Madera 
Center. The item was postponed until the next meeting to discuss refinancing as a viable 
option.  
 
Chair Chase confirmed he also attended the same meeting where he said discussion 
took place on the various uses for the property and ways in which it could be developed 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
May 24, 2016 
 

12 

that would be beneficial to the Town. Chair Chase also reported on the abatement action 
at 14 Lakeside Drive.  
 
In response to Commissioner McCadden, Mr. Wolff said the debt on the center is 
approximately $9M.  
 

ii. Planning Director 
 
Planning Director Wolff discussed public meetings that have been scheduled by ABAG 
and MTC regarding three different scenarios that are under consideration to manage 
expected growth in the Bay area.  Mr. Wolff said that one of the meetings will take place 
on June 4th at the Corte Madera Community Center and he noted that the preferred 
scenario would affect transportation and housing.  
 

iii. Tentative Agenda Items for June 14, 2016 Planning Commission 
Meeting 

 
1. CORTE MADERA TOWN CENTER – WEST ENTRY STOREFRONT 

CHANGES 
2. TAMAL VISTA CORRIDOR STUDY  – REVIEW OF DRAFT 

CORRIDOR STUDY REPORT AND POSSIBLE ACCEPTANCE OF 
REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
B.   MINUTES 
 

i. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of May 10, 2016 will be reviewed 
at the June 14, 2016 meeting. 

 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made, seconded and unanimously moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:25 
p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 


